
You can view the agenda at https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code above.

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

You can view the agenda at https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code above.

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chair and Members of the 
Corporate Infrastructure and 
Regulatory Services Scrutiny 
Committee

(See below)

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon 
EX2 4QD

Your ref : Date : 16 June 2020 Email: wendy.simpson@devon.gov.uk
Our ref : Please ask for : Wendy Simpson 01392 384383

CORPORATE INFRASTRUCTURE AND REGULATORY SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 24th June, 2020

A meeting of the Corporate Infrastructure and Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee is to be held 
on the above date at 10.30 am to consider the following matters. This will be a Virtual Meeting. For 
the joining instructions please contact the Clerk for further details on attendance and/or public 
participation. 

P NORREY
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE

1 Apologies 
2 Minutes 

Minutes of the ordinary and budget Meetings held on 28 January 2020 (previously
circulated).

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention 
Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as matters of 
urgency.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/


4 Public Participation 
Members of the public may make representations/presentations on any substantive 
matter listed in the published agenda for this meeting, as set out hereunder, relating to a 
specific matter or an examination of services or facilities provided or to be provided.

5 Covid-19: Whole County Council Overview 
Chief Executive to report

6 Treasury Management Stewardship Report: Annual Report 2019/20 (Pages 1 - 6)
Report of the County Treasurer (CT/20/47) attached.

7 Update on Flood Risk Management Activities and the Local Strategy Review (Pages 7 - 
20)
Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/20/10), attached

8 Standing Overview Group: Exeter Transport Strategy 
Notes of the meeting held on 18 June 2020, to follow

9 20219 Locality  Annual Report 2019/20 (Pages 21 - 26)
Joint Report of the County Treasurer, and Chief Officer for Communities, Public Health, 
Environment & Prosperity (CS/20/1), attached

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

10 Items Previously Circulated (Pages 27 - 28)
Below is information previously circulated to Members relating to a matter previously 
considered by this Scrutiny Committee:

Letter from the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport: response to the 
Committee’s Task Group Report on gambling harm, (letter attached). 

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED

Nil

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be 
treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).
Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to 
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.



Membership 
Councillors A Dewhirst (Chair), P Colthorpe (Vice-Chair), Y Atkinson, K Ball, J Berry, R Bloxham, J Brook, P Crabb, 
A Eastman, R Edgell, I Hall, J Hook, R Radford, C Slade, C Whitton and J Hodgson
Declaration of Interests
Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this meeting, 
prior to any discussion taking place on that item.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this agenda 
should contact Wendy Simpson 01392 384383.
Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website and can also be accessed via the 
Modern.Gov app, available from the usual stores..
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy Centre’ on the 
County Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any confidential items which may need 
to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are excluded for 
that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chair.  Any filming must be done as 
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those 
actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may 
not wish to be filmed.  As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the 
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening. 

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on proceedings at this 
meeting.  An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for meetings held in the Committee 
Suite at County Hall.  For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, please contact the Officer identified above.
Public Participation
Devon’s residents may attend and speak at any meeting of a County Council Scrutiny Committee when it is reviewing any 
specific matter or examining the provision of services or facilities as listed on the agenda for that meeting.

Scrutiny Committees set aside 15 minutes at the beginning of each meeting to allow anyone who has registered to speak 
on any such item. Speakers are normally allowed 3 minutes each. 

Anyone wishing to speak is requested to register in writing to the Clerk of the Committee (details above) by the deadline, 
outlined in the Council’s Public Participation Scheme, indicating which item they wish to speak on and giving a brief 
outline of the issues/ points they wish to make. The representation and the name of the person making the representation 
will be recorded in the minutes.

Alternatively, any Member of the public may at any time submit their views on any matter to be considered by a Scrutiny 
Committee at a meeting or included in its work Programme direct to the Chair or Members of that Committee or via the 
Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat (committee@devon.gov.uk). Members of the public may also suggest topics 
(see: https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/

All Scrutiny Committee agenda are published at least seven days before the meeting on the Council’s website.
Emergencies 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following the fire exit 
signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do 
not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another format 
(e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), please 
contact the Customer Service Centre on 0345 155 1015 or email: 
committee@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and Scrutiny 
Secretariat in G31, County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

Induction loop system available

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/
mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk


Committee Terms of Reference 

 (1) To review the implementation of the Council’s existing policy and budget framework and 
ensure effective scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and policies and 
consider the scope for new policies for the Council’s use and management of its resources 
and the discharge of its corporate and strategic services and governance arrangements and 
community safety activity, including emergency planning and the Council’s functions in the 
scrutiny of authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies.

(2) To review the implementation of existing policies and to consider the scope for new 
policies with regard to all aspects of the discharge of the Council’s ‘place shaping and 
universal population services’ functions concerning the environment, economic activity and 
enterprise, integrated planning and transport and community services, including libraries, 
arts and cultural heritage of the County, an integrated youth service and post 16 education & 
skills;  

(3) To assess the effectiveness of decisions of the Cabinet in these areas of the Council’s 
statutory activity and relate overview and scrutiny to the achievement of the Council’s 
strategic priorities and objectives and of delivering best value in all its activities;

(4) To make reports and recommendations as appropriate arising from this area of overview 
and scrutiny.



NOTES FOR VISITORS
All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms 
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival.  If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should 
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space 
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.

SatNav – Postcode EX2 4QD

Walking and Cycling Facilities
County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle 
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes – a map can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House 

Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links
Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road).  To return to the High Street 
use Services K, J, T and R.  Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and 
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton, 
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street. 

The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas’s 
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High 
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from 
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on 
Barrack Road).

Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of 
congestion and pollution.  For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon. 

Car Parking and Security
There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road.  Current charges are: 
Up to 30 minutes – free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall 
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.

As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative 
parking if necessary.  Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20 
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are 
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

        NB                                 Denotes bus stops

Fire/Emergency Instructions
In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform 
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the 
nearest available exit.  The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and 
do not use the lifts.  Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car 
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further 
instructions.  Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.

First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider. 

A J

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/
https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon




CT/20/47 
Corporate Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee 

24 June 2020 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STEWARDSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 

 
Report of the County Treasurer 
 
 

 

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and determination 
by the Committee before taking effect. 

 
 
Recommendation:   That the Committee notes the report and considers whether it 

wishes to make any further comments to Cabinet on the 2019/20 
Treasury Management outturn position. 

  

1. Introduction 

1.1. The County Council has adopted the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. A revised 
Code of Practice was published by CIPFA in December 2017 and a revised Policy 
Statement and Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) were agreed by Council in 
February 2018. These were not changed for 2019/20. The Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategy for 2019/20 was agreed by Council in February 2019 and forms part 
of the published budget book. 

1.2. The purpose of this report is to show the outturn position, review performance and inform 
members of any key matters arising from the Council's Treasury and Debt Management 
activities during the 2019/20 financial year. The report also includes an update on the 
2020/21 Strategy. This report, together with any comments offered by this committee, will 
be considered by Cabinet on 8th July. 

 

2. Minimum Revenue Provision 

2.1. Each year the Council has a statutory obligation to charge to the revenue account an 
annual amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), which is a charge to make 
provision for the repayment of the authority's external debt and internal borrowing. The 
charge is based on the historic borrowing required to fund the Council's capital 
programme. 

2.2. The current policy is to charge MRP based on the period of benefit of the capital 
investment, i.e. straight line, over the life of the asset. However, all supported borrowing up 
to 1st April 2008 is charged over the life of the assets, calculated using the annuity 
method. The final outturn for MRP for 2019/20 was £14.432m. 

 

3. Treasury Management Outturn Position 2019/20 - Borrowing 

3.1. The overall aims of the borrowing strategy are to achieve:  

 Borrowing at the lowest rates possible in the most appropriate periods; 

 The minimum borrowing costs and expenses; 

 A reduction in the average interest rate of the debt portfolio. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



3.2. Since 2009 the Council has followed a policy of containing the capital programme, taking 
out no new external borrowing and repaying debt whenever this can be done without 
incurring a financial penalty. Therefore, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
assumption was that no new long-term borrowing would be required.  

3.3. In accordance with the MTFS, no long-term borrowing was undertaken during the 2019/20 
financial year. Instead all borrowing required to fund capital expenditure was met from 
internal cash balances. 

3.4. Active treasury management and the maintenance of levels of liquidity have ensured that 
no short-term borrowing was required during the financial year. Cash positions are 
monitored daily and modelled over a monthly horizon to ensure that anticipated liquidity 
levels are forecast accurately.  

3.5. No opportunities arose during the 2019/20 financial year to repay outstanding debt without 
incurring substantial premium penalties, which would negate any benefit of repaying the 
debt. The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) sets premature repayment rates, and where 
the interest rate payable on a current loan is higher than the repayment rate, the PWLB 
policy imposes premium penalties for early repayment. Therefore, it will only make 
financial sense to repay debt early if the PWLB changes its current policy, or if interest 
rates rise and cancel out the repayment premiums.  

3.6. In October 2019, HM Treasury announced an increase in interest rates for borrowing from 
the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). Some local authorities have substantially increased 
their use of the PWLB, as the cost of borrowing has fallen to record lows, in many cases to 
fund commercial property investment. HM Treasury was concerned about the level of local 
authority borrowing for this purpose and therefore announced that they would restore 
interest rates to levels available in 2018, by increasing the margin that applies to new 
loans from the PWLB by 100bps (one percentage point) on top of usual lending terms. 
This has made new borrowing less attractive, however, this has no impact on the rates 
applicable to the Council’s current long term debt, which were set at fixed rates when the 
loans were taken out. 

3.7. Despite the increase in PWLB rates for new borrowing, the premature payment rates have 
been left unchanged. Current interest rate forecasts suggest that it is extremely unlikely 
that gilt yields will rise sufficiently to cancel out the premiums in the medium term.   

3.8. At 31st March 2020 the level of long term debt stood unchanged at £507.85m as detailed 
in the table below. 

Analysis of Long Term Debt 

 

Actual 

31.03.19

Interest 

Rate

Actual 

31.03.20

Interest 

Rate

£'m % £'m %

PWLB 436.35 4.99 436.35 4.99

Money Market 71.50 5.83 71.50 5.83

PWLB 0.00 0.00

Money Market 0.00 0.00

507.85 5.11 507.85 5.11

Fixed Rate Debt

Variable Debt

Total External Borrowing
 

 

3.9. The carrying amount for long term debt figure presented in the Statement of Accounts for 
2018/19, comprising PWLB, LOBO and market debt, is £511.092m, £3.3m higher than the 
figure stated above. This difference is due to an accounting standard adjustment which 
requires us to record the value of our long term debt at its Net Present Value in the 
Statement of Accounts. The LOBOs (Lender Option Borrower Option) have stepped 
interest rates and are revalued annually based on the effective interest rate for the duration 

Page 2

Agenda Item 6



of the loan. The revaluation has the effect of smoothing the stepping of the interest over 
the life of the loans. 

 

4. Treasury Management Outturn Position 2019/20 - Investments 

4.1. The overall aim of the Council's investment strategy is to: 

 Limit the risk to the loss of capital; 

 Ensure that funds are always available to meet cash flow requirements; 

 Maximise investment returns, consistent with the first two aims; 

 Review new investment instruments as they come to the Local Authority market, and 
to assess whether they could be a useful part of our investment process. 

4.2. The Bank of England’s Base Rate remained at 0.75% throughout the year until the country 
was hit by the coronavirus pandemic. In response to the pandemic the Base Rate was 
reduced to 0.25% on 11 March 2020, and then further to 0.10% on 19 March. These 
changes came too late in the year to have any significant impact on the Council’s interest 
receipts in 2019/20 but will reduce the rates available in 2020/21.  

4.3. The average interest rate earned on investments, excluding the CCLA property fund, for 
the year was 0.97%, against the full year budget target return of 0.75%. The CCLA 
property fund has yielded an average rate of 4.27% for the same period against a full year 
budget target of 4.5%. The combined total return from all investments was 1.11%. 

4.4. The 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy included for the first time the ability for the 
Council to invest in short-dated bond funds and multi-asset income funds. Short dated 
bond funds will invest in high quality short dated government or corporate bonds. Multi-
asset income funds will invest in a wider range of investments designed to produce an 
income yield. In both cases, the funds concerned will invest in tradable instruments where 
the capital value of the investment will fluctuate. However, this provision was not utilised, 
as Brexit uncertainty suggested a more prudent approach, given that higher yielding 
investments will mean that there is an increased risk of loss of capital. 

4.5. Revenue lending during 2019/20, including the use of term deposits, call accounts and 
property funds, earned interest of £2.496 million against a full year budget of £1.6 million. 
The surplus achieved over budget can mostly be attributed to the higher rates of interest 
earned compared to the target rate. The target rate was set on a prudent basis, reflecting 
the risk that the base rate could be cut if there was a no deal Brexit. However, as the rate 
remained unchanged until March 2020 the Council was able to achieve higher rates than 
the target. The interest figure quoted is the return from the Council’s Treasury 
Management activity and is different from the figure presented in the Outturn Report and 
the Statement of Accounts which also includes interest generated from a number of other 
sources. 

4.6. All lending has been carried out in accordance with the Council's Treasury Management 
Strategy and with institutions on the list of approved counterparties. 

4.7. The following table shows the County Council's fixed and variable rate investments as at 
the start and close of the financial year: 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Schedule of Investments 

 Actual 

31.03.19

Interest 

Rate

Actual 

31.03.20

Interest 

Rate

Maturing in: £'m % £'m %

Bank, Building Society & MMF Deposits

Fixed Rates 

Term Deposits < 365 days 147.50 1.01 72.50 1.00

365 days & > 10.00 1.00 20.00 1.40

Callable Deposits

Call Accounts - - 45.00 0.65

Notice Accounts 12.50 1.01 45.00 0.90

Money Market Funds (MMF’s) 46.83 0.77 23.01 0.48

10.00 4.23 10.00 4.28

226.83 1.10 215.51 1.04

Property Fund

Variable Rate

All Investments
 

 

 

4.8. The figure as at 31st March 2020 includes £6.9m related to the Growing Places Fund 
(GPF). This figure was approximately £11.7m as at 31st March 2019.  Devon County 
Council has been the local accountable body for the GPF, which was established by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government to enable the development of local 
funds to address infrastructure constraints, promoting economic growth and the delivery of 
jobs and houses. Interest achieved on the GPF funds, based on the average rate achieved 
by the Council’s investments, accrues to the GPF and not to the County Council. 
Responsibility for the Growing Places Fund, together with the current balance of the fund, 
is due to transfer to Somerset, to be consistent with their role as host authority for the 
Local Enterprise Partnership. 

 

5. Prudential Indicators 

5.1. Linked to its Treasury Management Strategy, the County Council is required to monitor its 
overall level of debt in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice. Part of the code requires 
consideration of a set of Prudential Indicators in order to allow the Council to form a 
judgement about the affordable, prudent and sustainable level of debt. 

5.2. The purpose of the indicators is to demonstrate that: 

 Capital expenditure plans are affordable; 

 All external borrowing and other long term liabilities are within prudent and 
sustainable levels; 

 Treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with professional good 
practice. 

5.3. Three Prudential Indicators control the overall level of borrowing. They are: 

 The authorised limit - this represents the limit beyond which any additional 
borrowing is prohibited until the limit is revised by the County Council. Revision may 
occur during the year if there are substantial and unforeseen changes in 
circumstances, for example, a significant delay in achieving forecast capital receipts. 
In normal circumstances this limit will not require revision until the estimate for the 
following year is revised as part of the budget setting process. 

 The operational boundary – this indicator is based on the probable external debt 
and other long term liabilities during the year. Variations in cash flow may lead to 
occasional, short term breaches of the Operational Boundary that are acceptable.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



 The upper limit for net debt - the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does 
not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement. 

5.4. During the Budget process, the following Borrowing Limits were set for 2019/20: 

 Maximum borrowing during the period (Authorised Limit) £776.73m. 

 Expected maximum borrowing during the year (Operational Limit) £751.73m. 

 Maximum amount of fixed interest exposure (as a percentage of total) 100%. 

 Maximum amount of variable interest exposure (as a percentage of total) 30%. 

5.5. Members are asked to note that during 2019/20 the Council remained within its set 
Borrowing Limits and complied with the interest rate exposure limits. 

 

6. 2020/21 Update 

6.1. The world now looks very different compared to how it looked when the 2020/21 Treasury 
Management Strategy was set early in the year. The coronavirus pandemic has resulted in 
a lockdown of much economic activity across large parts of the world. The United Kingdom 
has been particularly badly hit, and as a result the Bank of England reduced its base rate 
firstly to 0.25% and then to 0.1% during March. When the Council set a target interest rate 
of 0.75% for 2020/21, it did so bearing in mind the risk of interest rates being cut as a 
result of a messy Brexit, but rates have been cut further than would have been expected 
as a result of the pandemic.  

6.2. As far as borrowing is concerned, the Medium Term Financial Strategy assumes that, over 
the three year period, no new long-term borrowing will be required. This is still envisaged 
to be the case, although this will be kept under review. The PWLB policy of imposing 
premium penalties for the early repayment of long term debt means there is little potential 
to repay further debt during the current financial year. 

6.3. As set out in the Treasury Management Strategy, a payment of £31.9 million was made to 
the Pension Fund representing advance payment of the deficit contributions due for 
2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. Due to the discount available for advance payment this will 
result in savings of £1.5 million over the three years. 

6.4. Despite the pandemic, it is still currently forecast that the Council will achieve the budgeted 
level of investment income in 2020/21. However, this is less certain than in previous years. 
The following factors contribute to that position: 

 Term deposits carried forward into 2020/21 that were made at the rates prevailing 
before the pandemic hit the economy will provide some mitigation against the rate 
cuts. 

 Local authorities that were seeking to bolster their cash balances in March were 
offering significantly higher rates, and we were able to agree forward deals totalling 
£20 million at rates above 1% over varying time periods. Subsequently the rates on 
offer from other local authorities have dropped significantly. 

 The decision was taken in early April to keep more cash immediately available to 
ensure the Council could meet all cashflow requirements resulting from the 
coronavirus pandemic. This decision was made taking into account both additional 
expenditure and actual and potential loss of income. Keeping more cash 
immediately available will reduce the level of investment income achieved. 

 Front-loading of Government grants related to the pandemic has meant that to date 
the Council’s cash balances have not been significantly impacted, but the 
anticipated level of additional expenditure is forecast to be higher than the grants 
provided. 

 The Council would be expected to achieve investment income of between 
£400,000 and £450,000 from the CCLA Property Fund investment. However, yields 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



may be impacted by the ability of tenants to meet rent payments on the property 
owned by the fund. 

6.5. The Bank of England has kept base rates at 0.1% since March but indicated that further 
support would be forthcoming when or if required. Markets are not projecting forward 
thoughts on interest rates, which are expected to remain at 0.1% for the foreseeable 
future, despite some talk of negative rates. Therefore, any new deposits are likely to be at 
very low rates. Given the level of risk that still remains, it is not recommended to make 
investments in short dated bond funds or multi asset income funds at the present time. The 
mid-year report will provide a further update on the forecast investment income for the 
year. 

 

7. Summary 

7.1. No long term or short-term borrowing was undertaken during 2019/20. It is not envisaged 
that any new long-term borrowing will be required over the next three year period but this 
will be reviewed annually. 

7.2. No opportunities arose during the 2019/20 financial year to repay outstanding debt without 
incurring substantial premium penalties, which would negate the benefit of repaying the 
debt.  

7.3. Investment income of £2.496 million was achieved in 2019/20 against a full year budget of 
£1.6 million. This represented a return of 1.11%, including the Property Fund investment. 
Successful prudent management of the Council’s short-term cash reserves has delivered a 
surplus of £0.9 million for the 2019/20 financial year. 

 
 
 
 
Mary Davis 
 
Electoral Divisions:  All  
Local Government Act 1972 
List of Background Papers - Nil 
Contact for Enquiries:   Mark Gayler 
Tel No:  (01392) 383621 Room G97 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



PTE/20/10

Corporate, Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee
24 June 2020

Update on Flood Risk Management Activities and the Local Strategy Review

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment

1. Summary

This report provides an update on the activities being carried out by Devon County Council’s Flood 
& Coastal Risk Management Team, in accordance with their responsibilities as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority (LLFA) for Devon. It also brings to the Committee’s attention the updating of the 
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy for Devon, which is due for publication by January 2021; 
this will replace the current strategy, published in 2014. Additionally, it provides an update on the 
adoption of sustainable drainage measures, which was raised as an issue by this Committee at its 
meeting in March 2019.

2. LLFA Responsibilities

2.1 Local Strategy
As previously reported, the first Devon Local Flood Risk Management Strategy was published in 
2014 for a 6-year period and is, therefore, due for updating. We commenced the review process at 
the end of 2019 to ensure a planned collaborative approach could be taken, enabling all other Risk 
Management Authorities (RMAs) and key stakeholders to be involved in the development of the 
revised strategy.

An internal Project Board was established to oversee this process consisting of the Head of 
Planning, Transportation and Environment, the Environment Manager and the 4 elected members 
representing DCC on the South West Regional Flood & Coastal Committee. An initial meeting was 
held between the Board and officers of the Flood & Coastal Risk Management Team to discuss the 
proposed format of the revised Strategy and to set out a programme for its delivery. The 
programme suggested that the draft Strategy should be brought to the attention of Corporate 
Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee, prior to public consultation, with its final 
adoption agreed by Cabinet in December 2020.

There has been no updated national guidance on the content of such strategies, so this can be 
agreed locally to suit the specific requirements of the LLFA and partner stakeholders. In our 
opinion, the original Strategy provided a lot of detail on the specific roles and responsibilities of 
each RMA and their approach to partnership delivery but, other than though the accompanying 
Annual Action Plan, insufficiently focussed on the main flood risk priorities to be addressed over 
the Strategy period. To remedy this, we have divided the revised strategy into four distinct 
sections. The first provides a much more concise precis of the descriptive content and principles 
set out in the original strategy, which is relevant to all RMAs. The second highlights where we, as 
LLFA, plan to investigate and invest in flood risk priorities over coming 6 year programme period; 
this will be developed using the prioritisation criteria set out in the Strategy and supported by the 
data within DCC’s bespoke FloodARC analysis tool. The third section will provide the more 
detailed Annual Action Plan. Finally, the fourth section will identify a suite of supporting, pre-
existing, documents which provide important context and related detail for the Strategy.

A small partnership group from other RMAs and key stakeholders was established earlier this year 
to assist in the development and content of the Strategy. An early draft of its format and typical 
content was shared with the group, giving them the opportunity to provide constructive feedback. 
The comments received have been taken on board and the draft strategy updated and reshaped 
accordingly. The development of the detailed content of the Strategy was assisted by a second 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



phase of liaison with and feedback from this partnership group, which will continue to be developed 
into a final draft for public consultation from mid-August to mid-October 2020.

A copy of the proposed Executive Summary, together with a listing of the Strategy contents, is 
included in Appendix I. It should be noted that this is not yet finalised but has been included to 
show the scope of the Strategy and enable interim comment by this Committee.

2.2 Flood Risk Management Database
DCC’s internally developed analysis tool, known as FloodARC, continues to be updated with all 
flood related information as it is brought to our attention or following our own investigations. New 
information is also being collated for sustainable drainage proposals on new development. This will 
enable us to monitor the location of new installations and, potentially, their performance in future 
years.

The database also includes key information either required to be held by the LLFA or which 
supports the delivery of our role, such as a record of flood related assets, historic flooding, critical 
infrastructure, community resilience etc. All of this information is analysed to assist in the 
development of an Annual Action Plan and is now being used in earnest to prioritise the future 
investment programme to support the revised Local Flood Risk Management Strategy for Devon, 
plus the South West Flood Risk Management Plan, currently being prepared by the Environment 
Agency.

2.3 Statutory Consultee for Sustainable Drainage (SuDS)
DCC’s role as a statutory consultee to the Local Planning Authorities for the surface water 
management on new major developments continues to be very busy, with approximately 500 new 
applications reviewed each year. The ongoing dialogue between developers, their consultants and 
relevant Planning Officers can mean numerous design iterations being reviewed before a 
satisfactory solution is put forward that meets the required standards, as set out in our Sustainable 
Drainage Guidance.

Our pre-application service, introduced at the end of 2018, has had a steady uptake, with 
approximately 50 applications brought to our attention. This opportunity to provide advice before 
applications are developed for submission through the planning process will help all parties ensure 
a robust and sustainable drainage solution is proposed to manage the surface water flows.

Over the past 12 months we have allocated additional resource, by up to 0.5 of a full-time officer, 
to this SuDS function to ensure we response to all consultations within the statutory 21-day 
timeframe. In most cases this will be an initial response, setting out the further information required 
to meet our standards. We take this role very seriously and, for some applications, it can take 
many months (or even years) before a suitably robust solution is proposed and we can remove our 
objections.

One of our regular requests is for pre-development ground water monitoring data. We are faced 
with much resistance to this, usually due to time and cost; however, without this information it is not 
possible for us to, confidently, assess whether an infiltration system will function in accordance with 
the design proposal. If this is the only proposed drainage solution and it proves to be unviable, 
there is little scope for an alternative once planning permission is granted; this could result in 
unacceptable flood risk.

In relation to a concern raised at the March 2019 Scrutiny Committee regarding the suggestion of 
South West Water adopting sustainable drainage systems, there have been further developments 
with the national approach, previously referred to as ‘Sewers for Adoption v7’. This has now been 
rebranded as the Design and Construction Guidance (DCG), which came into force in April 2020. 
In view of the government’s previous decision not to implement Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water 
Management Act, which originally proposed that LLFAs approve, adopt and maintain all SuDS 
features, this new guidance sets out the mandatory requirement for water companies to adopt 
sustainable drainage systems providing they meet certain criteria. Each water company will 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/planning-and-development/suds-guidance/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/planning-and-development/suds-guidance/


provide further guidance regarding their stance on implementation and we are waiting for SWW to 
confirm their position. Further details of the DCG can be read here.

2.4 Land Drainage Consents
All works within watercourses need to be regulated, with those on Ordinary watercourses being 
administered by DCC as the LLFA and those on Main Rivers by the Environment Agency. Under 
Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act, the maximum fee chargeable, at present, by the LLFA for a 
Land Drainage Consent is only £50 and cannot be amended without a change to legislation. This is 
currently being challenged with Defra through the ADEPT Flood & Water Management Group, in 
which DCC have an active role, but consideration of this has been delayed by Brexit and the 
COVID-19 pandemic. A charge is not applied to all applications, as many are received from other 
teams within DCC, such as Bridge Maintenance.

Over the past 12 months just under 100 Land Drainage Consent applications have been dealt with 
within the required two-month timescale. Recent activity has slowed a little, due to the pandemic, in 
what is normally a busy period for consenting due to the embargo period of 1st October to 31st May 
to avoid the fish spawning period and those wanting to get works done in the clear summer 
months.

2.5 Enforcement
The Team is regularly called upon to investigate potential blockages within watercourse, whether 
due to human action or a natural occurrence. It is the landowner’s responsibility to maintain the 
watercourse that runs through or adjacent to their property and DCC, as the LLFA, has powers to 
enforce the clearance of any blockage or structure causing an impediment to flow. Many issues 
brought to our attention are as a result of neighbourly disputes and do not fall within the limited 
powers we have. In some situations, we may need to advise a landowner of a potential risk, such 
as an unstable wall or overgrown vegetation, that is not actually impeding the flow but could if 
unattended. This would be either through an informal discussion or letter, bringing the issue to their 
attention.

Over the past 12 months we have had to serve three formal notices to landowners requesting that 
they clear significant blockages from their watercourses as a result of their failure to act on the 
initial and informal request. Fortunately, each has been resolved without the need to take any 
further legal action.

2.6 Flood Investigations
Despite the significant flooding that was experienced in the north of England during the wet winter 
months of 2019/20, Devon fared reasonably well, with only one storm triggering the need to 
produce a Section 19 Flood investigation Report. This was in a known flood risk area at Ottery St 
Mary, where the authorities were working in partnership to deliver flood improvements and reduce 
the risk. A new South West Water system was being upgraded at the time of the event and is now 
complete and DCC has followed this with the provision of Property Flood Resilience (PFR) 
measures for the five affected properties. A copy of the Investigation Report for the event in 
September 2019, along with all  previous reports that have been produced, can be found here.

3. DCC Role in Supporting Flood Prevention

3.1 Flood Improvement Schemes
As reported to Cabinet in March 2020, the past 12 months has been focussed on delivering the 
main capital flood improvements outlined in the DCC Flood Risk Management Annual Action plan 
and within Defra’s current six year programme, which we have just entered the final year of. Other 
small and more local schemes have also been progressed alongside these larger projects. 
Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, all works on site had to be suspended, so progress 
to many schemes has been delayed. 

At the start of the 2019/20 financial year the flood improvements for Modbury were being finalised 
and brought into operation. This provided a reduction in flood risk to 50 residential and 32 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Water-UK-SuDS-brochure.pdf
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/flood-investigations-reports-and-studies/


commercial properties. Also completed was the first phase of the Northbrook surface water 
improvements at Exeter, but the second phase, which has been granted planning approval, has 
been delayed. This phase will be progressed as soon as a contractor can be appointed and it safe 
to commence; on completion of both phases, a total of 55 properties will benefit from a reduced 
flood risk. Works at Ivybridge, Stokeinteignhead, Ottery St Mary, Cullompton and Ugborough had 
to be pulled off site and other projects at South Pool and Sidmouth have also been delayed further 
by the pandemic.

More positively, it can be reported that work recommenced at Ivybridge in late May. Great effort will 
be continuing to ensure all other projects can make a restart over the coming weeks and months, 
with the aim of completing these within the current funding window ending on March 31st 2021.

A more detailed and illustrated report on the progress of individual flood improvement schemes 
and how they have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic has been produced and is available 
here. As schemes progress, further information will be updated on the Flood Risk website here 

3.2 Community Resilience
It is becoming increasingly evident that we cannot defend every property at risk of flooding and, in 
line with the key message of the revised National Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk Management 
Strategy soon to be published by the Environment Agency, we need to be making properties more 
resilient to the risk of flooding. The term resilient can be interpreted in many ways, such as making 
properties able to cope with a flood and bounce back shortly after, being able to deflect water away 
from the buildings, having a plan in place to know what to do in the event of a flood or to change 
the way we live and adapt to the risks.

All of these and many more considerations are being reviewed when investigating potential options 
for managing the flood risk in many of our communities. The Devon Community Resilience Forum 
(DCRF) continues to provide support and advice to property owners and local groups in developing 
Community Emergency Plans and sharing of best practice between one community and another. 
DCC continue to financially support the DCRF and has officer representatives on their Project 
Board to direct the key messages and approaches being promoted in making communities more 
resilient.

The Property Flood Resilient (PFR) Funding Scheme devised and promoted by DCC’s Flood Risk 
Management Team continues to be well received by members of the public whose properties have 
suffered internal flooding in the past and are unlikely to see any wider scale flood improvements in 
the near future. Over 50 properties have benefitted from the scheme, through which up to £5,000 
of flood resilience measures are funded to protect people’s valuable homes. Up to £50,000 of 
Defra Flood Defence Grant in Aid and £20,000 of Local Levy has been secured over the past few 
years, as well as this year and next, so with further support from the DCC FRM budgets we can 
continue to provide this very beneficial scheme

A number of community PFR schemes are also being delivered where the cost benefit or 
practicalities of a wider hard engineering scheme does not prove to be viable, including at 
Cullompton, South Pool and Stokeinteignhead.

3.3 Natural Flood Risk Management
We are committed to incorporate Natural Flood Management (NFM) measures within all flood risk 
management improvements, whenever practical to do so and have also considered opportunities 
for focusing only on NFM within specific catchments. To assist with the engagement process with 
landowners we are in the process of developing a best practice guidance document on NFM 
measures for Devon. This has been reviewed by a wide stakeholder group and their comments 
and feedback have been incorporated. The guidance will remain a live document that can be 
updated regularly as new advice and case studies become available and is to be published 
imminently. This can be viewed here, when published, together with other useful NFM information.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/PublicDocs/Planning/EQhshn1d825Iko1LGHha9tMB6mbEeObGHnkEbEYtDdhbTg?e=wwl4Rs
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/flood-schemes/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/natural-flood-management/


A recent project at Ottery St Mary is nearing completion, which involved the reinstatement of a 
historic pond feature, installation of leaky dams and natural flow control/diversion measures along 
woodland tracks. This will have a significant visual impact on the surface water runoff being 
conveyed down the streets of the town, reducing the impact on the existing drainage network and 
the risk of flooding to properties.

The scheme at Ivybridge, reported last year, which is being funded by the Environment Agency led 
Dartmoor Headwaters Project, has undergone a year of baseline monitoring before the NFM 
measures are implemented shortly. By gaining a good baseline of data pre-installation of the works 
we will be able to understand and appreciate the level of benefit being provided by the measures, 
which in turn will help inform the benefits of such measures for other locations.

4. Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

The Local Flood Risk Management Strategy update will be developed through regular consultation 
with the Project Board, other Risk Management Authorities and key stakeholders. On production of 
a reasonable draft document this will then undergo a full public consultation using the County 
Council’s standard procedures. Representations will be taken into consideration and incorporated 
as appropriate before the final document is released for publication. This will be presented to 
Cabinet for final sign-off.

All flood improvement schemes will require different levels of consultation with partners, key 
stakeholders and organisations, local residents, parish/town councils and any flood action groups, 
dependent on the size and scale of activities. The appropriate method to be used will be 
determined as the options are developed.

Wherever possible, we share technical information with other RMAs to see whether there are any 
collaborative opportunities for a partnered approach. This could, potentially, open-up other funding 
sources, additional resources and the prospect of delivering multiple benefits. A number of 
platforms already exist for sharing information, such as the Devon Operational Drainage Group 
and the South West Regional Flood & Coastal Committee, and we are currently working with other 
RMAs to develop a collaborative framework for sharing programme information and action plans, 
known as the South West Integrated Framework Team (SWIFT).

5. Financial Considerations

All national funding for flood and coastal erosion risk management is through Defra’s Flood 
Defence Grant-in-Aid (FDGiA), following approval of a business case justifying the cost beneficial 
proposal. Other local opportunities are also available to fulfil the partnership funding requirements. 
These include: Local Levy, paid into by the 5 LLFAs in the South West (Devon, Cornwall, 
Plymouth, Torbay and Isles of Scilly) and administered by the South West Regional Flood & 
Coastal Committee; Partnership Contributions from other RMAs, key stakeholders or businesses; 
and internal budgets from DCC.

In 2019/20 DCC drew down £765,000 of FDGiA and £120,000 of Local Levy and contributed over 
£620,000 of DCC funds to support the delivery of flood improvements, investigations, resilience 
measures and initiatives delivered by others. The total of over £1.5million would have been 
significantly higher if the pandemic had not forced the temporary suspension of works on site. The 
required funding to complete the works, prior to the end of Defra’s 6-year programme on 31st 
March 2021, has been submitted to the Environment Agency and early indications are positive. 
Priority will be given to those schemes already commenced.

As a result of the pandemic site closures there will be additional costs that will need to be paid for 
by the Client (DCC), including site demobilisation and remobilisation and the standing charges for 
site welfare, machinery, signage, etc. Staff costs will not be included as they have been covered by 
the furlough scheme.

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



6. Sustainability and Equality Considerations

The revised Devon Local Flood Risk Management Strategy will be supported by a new Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA), together with a full DCC Impact Assessment that will reflect on 
the social, equality and economic considerations. This will be a high-level document covering the 
implications of the Strategy as a whole; more detailed assessments will be carried out for each 
individual scheme as it is developed and promoted.

Through DCC’s statutory consultee role for providing advice on surface water management 
proposals for new ‘major’ development we require the use of sustainable drainage features 
following a hierarchy of techniques to not only encourage the reduction of flood risk but also to 
improve water quality, enhance biodiversity and facilitate amenity.

7. Legal Considerations

The main duties on and powers available to LLFAs are defined in the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and the Land Drainage Act 1991; all flood risk management activities 
carried out by DCC in this role accord with these Acts. Where necessary, the available 
enforcement powers are used to ensure watercourses maintain a free flow of water and there are 
no unlawful activities or structures built within an ordinary watercourse. Any works involved in 
delivering flood improvements, that require access onto third party land, require a legal notice to be 
served on the landowner, whereby compensation is payable. In most cases this is done through 
negotiations to agree heads of terms, although where landowners are not set to gain from the 
works this does become a challenge and seen as a financial opportunity.

8. Risk Management Considerations

Many communities in Devon are at risk, or have directly suffered the consequences, of flooding. It 
is DCC’s role as LLFA to monitor and review this risk and consider how this can be minimised 
through partnership working with other RMAs, in accordance with the Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy.

Using the risk-based criteria set out in the Strategy, a list of priority catchments will be determined 
for focussed attention and investment. The new ‘Part 2’ of the revised strategy will identify these 
areas, which will help inform our future Action Plans.

As we enter into the final year of Defra’s 6-year programme, with a number of projects that have 
been delayed as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, there is a significant risk of national funding 
not being available to complete all projects that were being proposed for 2020/21. Priority will be 
given to those projects already commenced to reduce the potential financial risks. This will be 
monitored throughout the year and schemes may need to be deferred if funding assurances cannot 
be attained.

In some locations the flood improvement works are proposed on third party land, where the 
landowner will not benefit from any of the works. Gaining amicable and affordable agreements with 
such landowners can be a challenge and a potential risk to the delivery of flood improvement 
projects.

9. Conclusion

DCC’s Flood & Coastal Risk Management Team continues to deliver a high-level service in 
fulfilling the role as LLFA and goes above and beyond statutory requirements through the delivery 
of essential flood improvement works. The Team adopts a strong position reviewing the surface 
water management proposals for new development, the consideration of Land Drainage Consent 
applications and the enforcement of any inappropriate works or blockages within an ordinary 
watercourse. At times this may be challenged, but a robust and consistent approach helps to 
monitor, maintain and reduce the risk of flooding in Devon.

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



The Local Flood Risk Management Strategy is being reviewed for publication in early 2021 and will 
improve on the original strategy by identifying high priority areas that will be considered for further 
investigation and investment over the 6-year strategy period, which falls in line with Defra’s 
national 6-year programme.

Dave Black
Head of Planning Transportation and Environment

Electoral Divisions: All

Cabinet Member for Community, Public Health, Transportation and Environmental Services:  
Councillor Roger Croad

Chief Officer for Communities, Public Health, Environment and Prosperity:  Virginia Pearson

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries:  Martin Hutchings

Room No.  AB3, Lucombe House, County Hall, Exeter. EX2 4QD

Tel No:  (01392) 381909

Background Paper Date File Reference

1. Flood and Water 
Management Act

2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/pdfs/ukpg
a_20100029_en.pdf

2.. Devon Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy

June 2014 https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskstrategy

3. Sustainable Drainage 
Systems: Guidance for 
Devon

January 
2017

https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/planni
ng-and-development/suds-guidance/

4. South Hams District 
Council:  Drainage 
Assessment Guidance

- https://www.southhams.gov.uk/article/3483/Drainage-
Assessment-Guidance

5. DCC Flood Investigation 
Reports

Various https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/flood-
investigations-reports-and-studies/

6. Devon Community 
Resilience Forum web 
site

- https://www.devoncommunities.org.uk/projects/devon-
community-resilience-forum

7.

8.

9.

South West River Basin 
District Flood Risk 
Management Plan
Design & Construction 
Guide

Natural Flood Risk 
Management

March 2016

April 2020

-

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/south-
west-river-basin-district-flood-risk-management-plan

https://www.water.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/01/Water-UK-SuDS-
brochure.pdf
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/natura
l-flood-management/

Glossary

DEFRA - Department of Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs

PLR - Property Level Resilience

EA - Environment Agency RMA - Risk Management Authority
FDGiA - Flood Defence Grant in Aid SEA - Strategic Environmental 

Assessment
FRMP - Flood Risk Management Plan SuDS - Sustainable Drainage System
LLFA - Lead Local Flood Authority SWMP - Surface Water Management Plan
NFM - Natural Flood Management

mh030620circcs Update on Flood Risk Management Activities hk 03 110620

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/pdfs/ukpga_20100029_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/pdfs/ukpga_20100029_en.pdf
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskstrategy
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/planning-and-development/suds-guidance/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/planning-and-development/suds-guidance/
https://www.southhams.gov.uk/article/3483/Drainage-Assessment-Guidance
https://www.southhams.gov.uk/article/3483/Drainage-Assessment-Guidance
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/flood-investigations-reports-and-studies/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/flood-investigations-reports-and-studies/
https://www.devoncommunities.org.uk/projects/devon-community-resilience-forum
https://www.devoncommunities.org.uk/projects/devon-community-resilience-forum
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/south-west-river-basin-district-flood-risk-management-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/south-west-river-basin-district-flood-risk-management-plan
https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Water-UK-SuDS-brochure.pdf
https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Water-UK-SuDS-brochure.pdf
https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Water-UK-SuDS-brochure.pdf
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/natural-flood-management/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/natural-flood-management/


Appendix I to PTE/20/10
Extracted from Draft Devon Local Flood Risk Management Strategy

Executive Summary
Why Devon needs a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
Devon County Council (DCC) developed its first Strategy in 2014. Under our duties as a Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, we have a 
responsibility to maintain a strategy for how we will manage local flood across our area. This 
document sets out our updated strategy for the period 2021-2027.

Our Vision
We will manage and reduce flood risk to property and significant infrastructure in Devon efficiently, 
through collaboration with partners and ensure that flood risk is not increased, making Devon more 
resilient to flooding and adapting for future climate change.

Key themes
We will achieve our vision by following key themes throughout the strategy. Increasing resilience of 
communities and places to climate change, through partnership working, community engagement 
and investment in flood alleviation schemes. We will prioritise high risk communities and natural, 
sustainable solutions. 

Who does what?
Risk Management Authorities and Planning Authorities have various responsibilities when it comes 
to flood risk management. This strategy summarises the roles and responsibilities of RMAs and 
LPAs under relevant legislation and in particular, the role of Devon County Council as Lead Local 
Flood Authority.

What we will do
To achieve the vision and objectives in this strategy, we have set out a series of Principles that 
Devon County Council will follow:

Principle 1: Integrated Flood Risk Management and Partnership Working
Through collaborative working, Devon Risk Management Authorities will consider opportunities for 
multiple benefits and the alignment of programmes to maximise funding availability, delivering 
effective, consistent and integrated flood risk management.

Principle 2: Addressing the Skills Gap
Where skills gaps are identified in Devon County Council’s flood risk management, we will seek 
opportunities through internships, apprenticeships and graduate programmes, in addition to 
specialist consultants when required.

Principle 3: Improving Data Quality and Management
Devon County Council will keep up to date and accurate records of flood risk data and will ensure 
government guidance is followed on the use of geographical information and maintaining 
metadata, enabling efficient data use and storage, sharing with partners when appropriate.

Principle 4: Maintaining an Asset Register and Record
Devon County Council will continue to populate its asset register with flood risk features thought to 
have a significant impact on flood risk, ensuring that this is up to date with national developments 
and guidance and that the assets recorded are used as a vital part of assessing local flood risk.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Principle 5: Designating Flood Risk Features
Devon Risk Management Authorities have the powers to designate any structures and features 
that are considered to affect flood risk, including those which were not necessarily designed or 
constructed for that purpose.

Principle 6: Investing in Local Flood Risk Management
All Risk Management Authorities in Devon will work in partnership to deliver local flood 
management schemes and initiatives. An investment plan will be developed through collaborative 
working and will be outlined in our list of Priority Communities, the South West Flood Risk 
Management Plan and flood risk management measures outlined in Part 2 of this Strategy. 
Funding will be sought through the relevant opportunities such as FDGiA, Local Levy, local 
authority capital budgets and private contributions. 

Principle 7: Sharing of Investment Programmes
The South West Flood Risk Management Plan will pull together the investment programs of Risk 
Management Authorities (RMAs) and signpost to more details on individual RMA action plans. The 
sharing of investment programmes and project plans will be encouraged between all of the RMAs, 
using the already established Devon Flood and Water Management Group as a forum to discuss 
and prioritise investment in local flood risk management.

Principle 8: Seeking additional funding
Devon Risk Management Authorities will seek additional funding from the national, regional and 
local sources and take the opportunity to obtain funding through other government initiatives, as 
they arise, to implement location-specific actions identified in the Action Plan.

Principle 9: Flood Risk Management Studies
Devon Risk Management Authorities will continue to work in partnership and develop studies in 
order to better understand and reduce flood risk and improve community resilience.

Principle 10:  Encourage Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
Devon County Council encourages the use of SuDS and promotes the benefits such as improving 
water quality, biodiversity and amenity, channeled throughout various groups, development 
management and through advice on Local Authority Core Strategies, development plans and 
policies.  Devon County Council will give guidance to Planning Authorities and the development 
industry as a Statutory Consultee, fulfilling a duty to check and approve sustainable drainage 
system designs for major developments.

Principle 11:  Consenting to works on Ordinary Watercourses
Devon County Council will regulate works on ordinary watercourses, ensuring that any activity will 
not increase flood risk and will encourage sustainable measures and methods in doing so. This will 
be in line with the regulation of Main Rivers by the Environment Agency maintaining a consistent 
approach across Devon.

Principle 12: Natural Flood Management 
We will prioritise natural flood management measures (where appropriate) in all flood 
investigations and improvement projects, either as sole measures or in combination with hard 
engineering solutions, including supporting NFM initiatives throughout Devon. We will promote 
sustainable land management which seeks reduced rates and volumes of surface runoff, erosion 
and sediment transport by promoting education and awareness campaigns as part of community 
engagement projects. 

Principle 13: Sustainable Management of Local Flood Risk
DCC Flood Risk Management will seek to reduce the risk of flooding to property and significant 
infrastructure in a way that will conserve, and where appropriate enhance the interconnected 
needs of the economy, society and environment, whilst making these more resilient.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Principle 14:  Adapting to Climate Change
Devon Risk Management Authorities must use the latest UK Climate Projections to make resilient 
flood risk management decisions for the effects of climate change.  This may lead to difficult 
choices about the future protection of property and infrastructure.

Principle 15:  Raising Awareness and Improving Communication and Involvement
Through the collaboration with other Risk Management Authorities and the Devon Community 
Resilience Forum, all Partners will work together towards raising public awareness (including those 
that are most vulnerable such as the elderly, young children, those living with a disability or living in 
areas of deprivation) about flood risk and the roles of the Risk Management Authorities, providing 
clear and up to date information.  

Principle 16: Property Flood Resilience
When wider flood alleviation schemes for a community or individual property are not viable or 
unable to be delivered in the foreseeable future, we will remain committed to making properties 
more resilient to flooding through the installation of Property Flood Resilience measures where 
possible.

Principle 17:  Working with Emergency Responders
The Lead Local Flood Authority and District Councils of Devon, through their Emergency Planning 
services, will continue to work with Partners’ emergency responders to develop plans and provide 
information to inform operational decisions in support of a Devon that is resilient to flooding.

Principle 18: Recording and Investigating Flood Events
Devon County Council in partnership with the Environment Agency will record local flood incidents 
reported through Risk Management Authorities and the public in order to build up a picture of risk 
for current and future work. Those that reach Devon’s significance thresholds will be investigated 
under Section 19 of the Flood and Water Management Act and the reports will be published online.

What we will do over next 6 years:
Part 2 of Devon’s local strategy looks ahead over the next investment period of 6 years, in line with 
the national funding program. Here we show how this work is prioritised, including the current 
priority communities. The annual action plan of investment is covered in Part 3 of this strategy. 

Possible flood risk management measures will generally fall into one of the categories below, 
where the general hierarchy listed shows how these measures should be approached. The 
hierarchy follows the principles of starting with increasing a community’s preparedness for flooding 
and increasing resilience, through to implementing physical flood defence measures. 

Resilience is fundamental for all communities, to manage local flood risk and be prepared for future 
climate change impacts. The physical measures should prioritise more sustainable natural 
processes in the first instance, either as sole measures or in combination with hard engineered 
solutions. Hard engineering measures should be considered when natural solutions alone will not 
adequately protect a community to the required level.

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



Investment Hierarchy
1. Community resilience measures: Engaging with communities directly and through the Devon 

Community Resilience Forum to raise awareness of flood risk and encourage the setting up of 
local flood action groups and development of emergency plans to increase resilience. These 
measures should always be a part of any community at risk, even when other interventions 
are in place.

2. Emergency planning measures: Flood warnings and flood action plans can be used to 
improve community preparedness and resilience to flooding. Support from the Devon 
Community Resilience Forum is available for communities.

3. Riparian landowner maintenance: Members of the public who own land adjacent to 
watercourses have riparian responsibilities and therefore a duty to maintain their section of 
watercourse to ensure there is no impediment of flow. See DCC’s guide ‘Living with Water’ 

4. Making Policy: Policies can be made to direct spatial planning or to set standards for 
development that will help reduce further flood risk.

5. Natural Flood Management measures: Implementation of natural measures which help to 
alleviate the risk of flooding to property and significant infrastructure, either as sole 
measures or in combination with hard engineering solutions. Managing water in the upper 
catchments will help to reduce and slow the flows downstream minimising the risk to 
property and the level of any hard engineering defences that may be required.

6. Retrofitting Sustainable Drainage Systems: Installation of sustainable drainage systems in 
urban areas to manage surface water and remove it from traditional piped drainage systems.

7. Delivery of early intervention schemes: A solution that can be implemented relatively 
quickly by the Risk Management Authorities or Local Authority at relatively low cost.

8. Community action: Some cases can be successful when community groups join forces and 
deliver and maintain their own local schemes. In some cases this may generate further 
contributions from local levy or the Lead Local Flood Authority. 

9. Further investigation/research: Further investigations such as catchment studies and 
hydrological/hydraulic assessments to understand the flow rates and directional paths and 
evaluate the extent of flooding. These would provide evidence for future capital investment.

10.Development of future schemes: Where immediate action is not financially viable or a 
solution not readily available then a larger scale flood alleviation scheme may be required. In 
such cases national funding would need to be secured together with additional contributions 
from others, such as local levy, local authorities and other third parties. This is likely to 
require hard engineered improvements, however Natural Flood Management measures must 
also be considered and delivered where possible.

11.Property Flood Resilience: Resilience measures at a property level such as flood doors, gates 
and air bricks can be installed to increase the resilience of individual homes and businesses. 
This option is often chosen as the last line of defence where any potential for a larger flood 
alleviation scheme will not be viable or delivered in the foreseeable future.

B
e

i
n

g
 

p
r
e

p
a

r
e

d
/
i
n

c
r
e

a
s

i
n

g
 
r
e

s
i
l
i
e

n
c

e

T
a

k
i
n

g
 
a

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

 
h

i
g

h
 
r
i
s

k
 
c

o
m

m
u

n
i
t
i
e

s

F
l
o

o
d

 
r
i
s

k
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 
m

e
a

s
u

r
e

s
 
h

i
e

r
a

r
c

h
y

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/PublicDocs/Planning/EYZxf28D09BImgFQZ4Cn2D8BIRCiQsUydUfqHUp25i3Wsg?e=bjO8qi


Devon Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 2021 – 2027 Contents i
Foreword
.................................................................................................................................................................
i
Executive Summary
..................................................................................................................................................
ii
Glossary
.................................................................................................................................................
vi
Part 1: Strategic vision and objectives: Why we are producing this strategy
..................................................................................................................................................
1
Introduction
................................................................................................................................................................
1
Why Devon needs a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
................................................................................................................................................................
1
Devon County Council’s Vision for flood risk management
................................................................................................................................................................
3
Devon County Council’s objectives for flood risk management
................................................................................................................................................................
3
Strategic plans and assessments
................................................................................................................................................................
4
Roles and Responsibilities - Who Does What?
................................................................................................................................................................
6
Risk Management Authorities (RMAs) in Devon
................................................................................................................................................................
6
Partnership and joint working
................................................................................................................................................................
7
Flood risk management in Devon - What do we do?
................................................................................................................................................................
9
What DCC will do as the LLFA
..............................................................................................................................................................
10
Flood risk data
..............................................................................................................................................................
10

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Investment in flood risk management
..............................................................................................................................................................
11
Flood risk management funding
..............................................................................................................................................................
12
Flood risk assessments and studies
..............................................................................................................................................................
13
Planning, development & infrastructure
..............................................................................................................................................................
14
Regulation of works on watercourses
..............................................................................................................................................................
18
Natural Flood Management and sustainability
..............................................................................................................................................................
18
Climate change
..............................................................................................................................................................
19
Community resilience
..............................................................................................................................................................
20
Flood forecasting and warnings
..............................................................................................................................................................
21
Self help measures
..............................................................................................................................................................
22
Responding to flood events
..............................................................................................................................................................
23
Post flood event community engagement
..............................................................................................................................................................
24
Investigating flood events
..............................................................................................................................................................
24
Reviewing the strategy
..............................................................................................................................................................
25
Performance evaluation
..............................................................................................................................................................
25

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Part 2: Priority Communities and Investment - What will we do and how?
................................................................................................................................................
27
How communities are prioritised
..............................................................................................................................................................
27
Devon’s priority communities
..............................................................................................................................................................
27
Opportunities and measures for delivering local flood risk management
..............................................................................................................................................................
28
Part 3: Annual action plan: What, when and where?
................................................................................................................................................
31
Part 4 –Supporting documents
................................................................................................................................................
32
Who to contact about flooding
................................................................................................................................................
33

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



SC/20/1

Corporate, Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee
24th June 2020

Locality Budget Annual Report 2019/2020

Joint Report of the County Treasurer, and Chief Officer for Communities, Public Health, 
Environment & Prosperity

1. Introduction

In line with the Council’s ‘Locality Budget Operating Principles’ an annual statement which 
summarises the allocations approved by Members is submitted to this Committee for audit 
and monitoring purposes. 

Each Member of the County Council was allocated a budget of £10,000 for 2019/20 to use to 
respond to local needs by giving grants in accordance with operating principle in Part 3 of 
Section 5 of the Constitution.

The locality budget process enables Members to give grants which respond to local needs 
within electoral divisions by supporting projects or activities that benefit the people and 
communities they represent. The Locality Budget, together with the ongoing Crowdfund Devon 
pilot, the Doing What Matters Community Grant Fund and the Making the Connection Grant 
Fund, have been key elements of the Council’s commitment to community resilience. 

With DCC responding currently to the COVID-19 crisis, the Doing What Matters and Making 
the Connection grant schemes have been suspended until further notice, with resources  
diverted to the newly created COVID-19 Prompt Action Fund (PAF). While our healthcare 
systems, public health practitioners, and local and national government are doing everything 
in their power to slow the spread of coronavirus, our voluntary and community sector 
organisations and local communities are also preparing to safely assist those most vulnerable 
during this unprecedented time. Through the COVID-19 Action Fund, DCC will rapidly provide 
small (less than £500) and medium (£500 to £5k) amounts of grant funding to community-led 
schemes, which identify and/or achieve the important things that can safely address some of 
the issues that are arising because of this Coronavirus outbreak

 

2. Locality Budget Statement of 2019/20

This Statement has been prepared for audit and monitoring purposes and summaries 
expenditure in 2019/20 by each of the 60 Councillors. 

For each Member, Appendix 1 to this report details: 

 Total Locality Budget for 2019/20 
 Carried forward Locality Budget from 2018/19
 Total Locality Budget payments allocated in 2019/20 

The Committee may wish to note the following: 

Total Locality Budget for 2019/20

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 
 The total Locality Budget available for 2019/20 was £838,007.14.

Total Locality Budget expenditure in 2019/20

 The total Locality Budget allocated in 2019/20 was £591,892.25.

An analysis of 2019/20 Locality Budget expenditure by project type shows the following 
expenditure during 2019/20:

Type of 
project Total allocated 
Culture £100,834.89
Economy £137,578.54
Events £98,875.79
Facilities £181,407.40
Highways £44,101.53
Other £29,094.10
Total £591,892.25

Culture includes:  Sport, leisure, arts, heritage, culture e.g. allotments, theatre, play, music.
Economy includes: Local economy, employment and welfare e.g. community shops, food 
banks, homelessness, youth clubs and libraries.
Events includes:  Community events and seasonal celebrations, trips, visits, 
commemorations, memorial events.
Facilities includes village hall/community facility improvements.
Highways includes  grit bins, signs, safety improvements, bridges, traffic regulation orders, 
rights of way, weed treatment/clearance.

Mary Davis
County Treasurer

Dr Virginia Pearson
Chief Officer for Communities, Public Health, Environment & Prosperity

Electoral Divisions: All

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries:  Chris Ring

Room No.  G29, County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter, EX2 4QD

Tel No: (01392) 382865

Background Paper Date File Reference

Nil

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



Appendix 1
To SC/20/1

 Brought 
forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Ian Hall £134.11 £10,000.00 £10,134.11 £9,610.00 £524.11
 Ray Bloxham £1,884.97 £10,000.00 £11,884.97 £8,686.40 £3,198.57
 Sara Randall-
Johnson 

£1,884.97 £10,000.00 £11,884.97 £8,686.40 £3,198.57

 Richard Scott £7,318.66 £10,000.00 £17,318.66 £11,526.16 £5,792.50
 Jeffrey Trail £7,118.65 £10,000.00 £17,118.65 £11,526.16 £5,592.49
 Christine 
Channon 

£6,648.66 £10,000.00 £16,648.66 £10,301.16 £6,347.50

 Phillip Twiss £2,329.50 £10,000.00 £12,329.50 £8,939.00 £3,390.50
 Claire Wright £4,523.18 £10,000.00 £14,523.18 £12,045.00 £2,478.18
 Martin Shaw £1,893.63 £10,000.00 £11,893.63 £11,570.38 £323.25
 Stuart Hughes £1,612.67 £10,000.00 £11,612.67 £10,860.00 £752.67
 Iain Chubb £15,140.00 £10,000.00 £25,140.00 £16,349.92 £8,790.08
 
EAST DEVON £50,489.00 £110,000.00 £160,489.00 £120,100.58 £40,388.42

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Yvonne 
Atkinson 

£0.00 £10,000.00 £10,000.00 £8,537.02 £1,462.98

 Percy Prowse £3,075.73 £10,000.00 £13,075.73 £8,657.02 £4,418.71
 Rob Hannaford £550.00 £10,000.00 £10,550.00 £9,443.02 £1,106.98
 Greg Sheldon £4,677.43 £10,000.00 £14,677.43 £2,415.45 £12,261.98
 Hilary Ackland £3,338.10 £10,000.00 £13,338.10 £10,938.87 £2,399.23
 Carol Whitton £5,144.23 £10,000.00 £15,144.23 £5,621.02 £9,523.21
 Su Aves £2,200.00 £10,000.00 £12,200.00 £10,261.02 £1,938.98
 Andrew 
Leadbetter 

£6,461.35 £10,000.00 £16,461.35 £9,443.73 £7,017.62

 Marina Asvachin £285.73 £10,000.00 £10,285.73 £10,285.73 £0.00

 EXETER £25,732.57 £90,000.00 £115,732.57 £75,602.88 £40,129.69

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Nick Way £1,541.00 £10,000.00 £11,541.00 £6,975.00 £4,566.00
 Margaret 
Squires 

£2,049.60 £10,000.00 £12,049.60 £4,167.22 £7,882.38

 John Berry £1,917.02 £10,000.00 £11,917.02 £10,950.00 £967.02
 Colin Slade £2,002.48 £10,000.00 £12,002.48 £11,722.20 £280.28
 Polly Colthorpe  £3,660.28 £10,000.00 £13,660.28 £12,455.00 £1,205.28

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



 Ray Radford £3,005.00 £10,000.00 £13,005.00 £7,551.60 £5,453.40
 
MID DEVON £14,175.38 £60,000.00 £74,175.38 £53,821.02 £20,354.36

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Brian 
Greenslade 

£13,846.40 £10,000.00 £23,846.40 £14,880.00 £8,966.40

 John Mathews £7,446.41 £10,000.00 £17,446.41 £14,435.00 £3,011.41
 Caroline Chugg £6,624.73 £10,000.00 £16,624.73 £14,247.00 £2,377.73
 Richard Edgell £7,549.04 £10,000.00 £17,549.04 £17,050.00 £499.04
 Andrea Davis £9,880.70 £10,000.00 £19,880.70 £4,564.00 £15,316.70
 Frank 
Biederman  

£6,269.89 £10,000.00 £16,269.89 £11,700.17 £4,569.72

 Paul Crabb £16,906.41 £10,000.00 £26,906.41 £13,673.80 £13,232.61
 Jeremy Yabsley £1,700.00 £10,000.00 £11,700.00 £8,580.00 £3,120.00
 
NORTH DEVON £70,223.58 £80,000.00 £150,223.58 £99,129.97 £51,093.61

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 John Hart £4,193.56 £10,000.00 £14,193.56 £7,310.00 £6,883.56
 Jonathon 
Hawkins 

£0.00 £10,000.00 £10,000.00 £9,828.00 £172.00

 Roger Croad £5,774.60 £10,000.00 £15,774.60 £9,756.06 £6,018.54
 Julian Brazil £820.29 £10,000.00 £10,820.29 £9,900.00 £920.29
 Rufus Gilbert  £1,072.88 £10,000.00 £11,072.88 £6,179.34 £4,893.54
 Richard Hosking £9,550.23 £10,000.00 £19,550.23 £7,282.50 £12,267.73
 Jacqui Hodgson £317.53 £10,000.00 £10,317.53 £10,313.00 £4.53
 
SOUTH HAMS £21,729.09 £70,000.00 £91,729.09 £60,568.90 £31,160.19

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Stuart Barker £6,950.00 £10,000.00 £16,950.00 £4,400.00 £12,550.00
 George Gribble £1,508.03 £10,000.00 £11,508.03 £5,712.80 £5,795.23
 Jerry Brook £3,241.83 £10,000.00 £13,241.83 £5,812.67 £7,429.16
 John Clatworthy £146.01 £10,000.00 £10,146.01 £9,050.00 £1,096.01
 Alan Connett £261.35 £10,000.00 £10,261.35 £10,261.35 £0.00
 Alistair Dewhirst £0.00 £10,000.00 £10,000.00 £9,100.00 £900.00
 Ron Peart £297.00 £10,000.00 £10,297.00 £9,298.00 £999.00
 Jackie Hook £0.00 £10,000.00 £10,000.00 £8,800.00 £1,200.00
 Gordon Hook £3,243.00 £10,000.00 £13,243.00 £9,800.00 £3,443.00
 Sylvia Russell £1,719.00 £10,000.00 £11,719.00 £6,800.00 £4,919.00

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



 
TEIGNBRIDGE £17,366.22 £100,000.00 £117,366.22 £79,034.82 £38,331.40

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 Linda Hellyer £4,583.41 £10,000.00 £14,583.41 £10,279.60 £4,303.81
 Tony Inch £2,951.41 £10,000.00 £12,951.41 £6,965.00 £5,986.41
 Barry Parsons £6,150.29 £10,000.00 £16,150.29 £13,880.00 £2,270.29
 Andrew 
Eastman 

£9,131.41 £10,000.00 £19,131.41 £13,000.00 £6,131.41

 Andrew Saywell £1,142.78 £10,000.00 £11,142.78 £9,185.60 £1,957.18

 TORRIDGE £23,959.30 £50,000.00 £73,959.30 £53,310.20 £20,649.10

      
 Brought 

forward 
18/19

Budget            
19/20

Total 
Budget

Total 
Allocated

Remaining

 James McInnes £3,080.00 £10,000.00 £13,080.00 £12,235.00 £845.00
 Kevin Ball £5,102.00 £10,000.00 £15,102.00 £11,977.87 £3,124.13
 Debo Sellis  £2,000.00 £10,000.00 £12,000.00 £11,999.91 £0.09
 Philip Sanders £4,150.00 £10,000.00 £14,150.00 £14,111.10 £38.90
 
WEST DEVON £14,332.00 £40,000.00 £54,332.00 £50,323.88 £4,008.12

  

 TOTAL £238,007.14 £600,000.00 £838,007.14 £591,892.25 £246,114.89

Page 25

Agenda Item 9





Page 27

Agenda Item 10



Page 28

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	6 Treasury Management Stewardship Report: Annual Report 2019/20
	7 Update on Flood Risk Management Activities and the Local Strategy Review
	9 20219 Locality  Annual Report 2019/20
	10 Items Previously Circulated

